Minutes of the Workshop Meeting of November 8, 2012

Page 2

UNAPPROVED

CITY OF BLAINE

ANOKA COUNTY, MINNESOTA

WORKSHOP

CITY COUNCIL MEETING NO. 12-63
Thursday, November 8, 2012
6:30 P.M.

Cloverleaf Farm Room

10801 Town Square Drive

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Ryan at 6:30 p.m.  
PRESENT:  Councilmembers Bourke, Clark, Herbst, Hovland, Kolb, and Mayor Ryan.
ABSENT:  Councilmember Swanson.
Quorum Present.

ALSO PRESENT:  Clark Arneson, City Manager; Thomas Sweeney, City Attorney; Bryan Schafer, Planning and Community Development Director; Bob Therres, Public Services Manager; Joe Huss, Director, Finance; Jim Kappelhoff; Parks and Recreation Director; Roark Haver, Communications Technician; Jane Cross, City Clerk; and Recording Secretary Linda Dahlquist.   
Assumption Based Budgeting:  2013 Prioritized Budgeting - Public Services

Finance Director Huss stated staff has prepared a 2013 Public Services budget for Council’s review.  The City of Blaine’s Public Services include four divisions: Public Works, Engineering, Geographic Information System (GIS), and Parks and Recreation.  He noted the budget was prepared using a prioritized assumption

Finance Director Huss gave an overview of the Parks and Recreation Division’s Youth Programs, which plans, organizes and supervises recreation programs.  He noted the Youth Program offers classes/activities/program, special events, sport camps, pre-school programs, teen programs, and outdoor ice skating.

Councilmember Clark asked if all costs of the programs are covered.  Parks and Recreation Director Kappelhoff replied several of the programs breakeven, but not all costs are covered.  
Councilmember Clark questioned the outdoor ice rink costs.  Parks and Recreation Director Kappelhoff replied the City charges $5.00 in user fees and the fee covers 10-15% of expenses.  He noted personal services is a large part of the budget and includes part-time salaries that range from $8,000-$10,000 for warming house attendants.  Councilmember Clark suggested using hockey parents to work hours in the warming houses in return for ice time.  
Councilmember Hovland asked about hockey usage.  Parks and Recreation Director Kappelhoff replied Happy Acres is scheduled Monday-Thursday.  Councilmember Hovland asked about open skating usage.  Parks and Recreation Director Kappelhoff replied there are scheduled hours for open skating at several rinks.  
Councilmember Kolb suggested the City look at facilities for indoor sports such as basketball, volleyball, etc.  Council discussed indoor sports and facilities.
Finance Director Huss noted the Youth Program revenue does not include field usage fees and the $5.00 user fee will be raised to $10.00.  

Councilmember Clark commented the hockey association pays for Fogerty Arena and the City had only contributed the land lease.  

Mayor Ryan commented Coon Rapids neglected two parks to the point where they had to close the parks because the fields were too far gone and too costly to repair.  

Land Use Issue (Capstone Homes Re-plat of Shadow Ponds)
Planning and Community Development Director Schafer stated Capstone Homes has reached an agreement to purchase Shadow Ponds development from the lender and is proposing to redevelop the development into 15 small lots for single family homes which will require a re-plat, redesign and removal of some improvements made by the previous developer GM Homes.  He stated the land is guided MDR (Medium Density Residential) and is zoned DF (Development Flex).  He noted the 15 single family lot re-plat is a shift in product type and density which could impact the ultimate use for the three parcels to the north.  He commented the City has not talked to the three home owners to the north, but will before a public hearing is held.  
Councilmember Bourke commented the new development will set the stage for the development of the three lots to the north.  

Mayor Ryan commented the single family homes will offer less density and traffic to the existing neighborhood.

2013 Proposed Special Revenue Funds Budget
Finance Director Huss stated the 2013 Special Revenue Funds budget is comprised of the Cable Television Fund and the Charitable Gambling Fund.  
Finance Director Huss stated the Cable Television Fund accounts for revenue received from Comcast cable franchise fees paid by subscribers.  He stated cable fees are passed through the North Metro Telecommunications Commission, which is the regulatory body that oversees the cable franchise.  He noted Blaine’s current practice is to use this funding for municipal cable (Cable Channel 16) related expenses.  He stated Blaine receives 57% of the franchise fees and the revenues have grown substantially since 2008.  
Councilmember Herbst questioned the operating expenditures, which have increased significantly from 2008 to 2012.  Finance Director Huss replied the City charging for the support through the General Fund, the agenda and website.  Councilmember Clark requested a copy of the Telecommunications Commission’s Operating Plan.  City Manager Arneson noted some of the increase in expenses was due to the migration to high definition.  Finance Director Huss noted funds are used to upgrade or replace aging equipment.

Councilmember Bourke asked if funds could be used for fiber optics.  City Manager Arneson stated Anoka County is working on fiber optics and the Council will decide if the City will connect to it. 

Mayor Ryan noted Roark Haver’s salary is paid from this fund.  

Finance Director Huss stated the Charitable Gambling Fund’s proceeds come from charitable gambling organizations operating within Blaine.  He stated there are seven organizations contributing 10% of their proceeds to the fund, which has increased revenue for the past three consecutive years.  He noted one unknown that could affect the fund is the new legislation that allows electronic pull-tabs to fund the new Viking’s stadium.  He stated expenditures from the fund are at the City’s discretion, provided they fall within the guidelines established by Minnesota Statute.  He noted allowable contributions include donations for 2012 to Alexandra House, BB4 Committee, CEAP, Centennial Community Food Shelf, Kingswood Church Food Shelf, Senior High Graduation Parties, and other Council approved programs.
Mayor Ryan suggested a donation be made to the Civil Air Patrol, which is a 501(c)(3) organization.  
Finance Director Huss stated there are funds available to increase donations for 2013.  

Council held discussion on having the JAYCEES or other organizations support the Blazin 4th fireworks.  Finance Director Huss stated the JAYCEES are not an active group and does not have a location in Blaine.  

Councilmember Clark suggested increasing donations by 50% to the same organizations as in 2012 and to add the Civil Air Patrol.  
OTHER BUSINESS

Councilmember Hovland stated the Historical Society is in need of more help.  He suggested getting volunteers from the schools.  
Councilmember Kolb stated there is an issue with parking at the Temple near Alexandra House.  City Manager Arneson stated the Temple will be discussed at an upcoming Workshop. 

The Workshop adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 







Tom Ryan, Mayor 
ATTEST:

Jane M. Cross, CMC, City Clerk 
Submitted by TimeSaver Off Site Secretarial, Inc.

